
 

   
 

  
  
 
  

  

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 

 
 

 
 

  
    

 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

                                                           
  

    
 

 

MEMORANDUM FOR GSA CONTRACTING ACTIVITIES 

FROM: JEFFREY A. KOSES 
SENIOR PROCUREMENT EXECUTIVE 

GSA Office of Governmentwide Policy 

 Class Deviation CD-2020-09 
Supplement 1 

OFFICE OF ACQUISITION POLICY (MV) 

SUBJECT: Supplement to Clarify Class Deviation CD-2020-09; FAR Class Deviation -
Progress Payment Rates Based on Costs 

On April 27, 2020, I approved the subject class deviation to increase the customary 
progress payment rates from 80 percent to 90 percent for large businesses and 85 
percent to 95 percent for small business concerns. 

While this class deviation is focused on supporting COVID response efforts and 
references CAAC Letter 2020-031, there is a continued need for a deviation in the 
absence of a declared COVID emergency. 

Specifically, by maintaining the aforementioned percentage increases, GSA can 
continue its focus on encouraging small business concerns, including new and recent 
entrants, in federal acquisition. Therefore, though the Administration has announced 
that the COVID National Emergency declaration and Public Health Emergency 
declaration will end on May 11, 2023, this class deviation continues to remain in effect 
until rescinded or incorporated into the FAR or GSAR in accordance with Section 6 of 
the class deviation. 

Questions regarding this supplement may be directed to GSARPolicy@gsa.gov. 

1This CAAC letter provides agencies the ability to determine whether or not to cancel an agency’s class 
deviation as a result of the expiration of the COVID emergency declaration. 
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https://www.acquisition.gov/sites/default/files/page_file_uploads/CAAC-Letter-2020-03-Customary-Progress-Payment-Rates-Based-on-Costs.pdf









